ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG
January 29, 2016
1: 04 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Charisse MIllett
Representative Kurt O son (alternate)

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 221
"An Act relating to protective orders.™

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 221

SHORT TI TLE: ENFORCEMENT OF FOREI GN PROTECTI VE ORDERS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

01/ 19/ 16 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 16

01/ 19/ 16 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H JUD

01/ 29/ 16 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 221 as prine sponsor.

TI MOTHY CLARK, Staff

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 29, 2016



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Di scussed provisions contained within HB
221.

MARY LUNDQUI ST, Seni or Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Opi ni ons, Appeals & Ethics Section

Ofice of the Attorney General

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regarding HB 221.

JOHN SKI DMORE, Division Director

Legal Services Section

Crimnal D vision

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 221.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 04: 20 PM

CHAIR GABRIELLE LEDOUX called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:04 p.m Represent ati ves
Gruenberg, Lynn, Caman and LeDoux were present at the call to

order.

HB 221- ENFORCEMENT OF FOREI GN PROTECTI VE ORDERS

1: 05: 06 PM

CO CHAI R LEDOQUX announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 221, "An Act relating to protective orders."

1: 05: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGMON, Al aska State Legislature, explained
that the bill is essentially a technical fix in its application.
He point out that he is an Alaska Native, born and raised in
Rural Al aska, and has had the opportunity as a legislator to
work directly with the crimnal justice agencies overseeing the
Departnment of Corrections (DOC) and the Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS). The role of tribal courts is grow ng, he opined,
in terms of providing justice and other services out in the
"l ocal" areas. Last year two resolutions passed from this
conmttee wth tribal attached to them and, he explained, the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -2- January 29, 2016



purpose of HB 221 is to allow tribal court to take an additi onal
step under Alaska law to increase its duties. He extended t hat
he is a strong proponent of the tribal courts that the Al aska
State Constitution permts.

CHAI R LEDQUX asked what tribal courts in Alaska m ght be able to
i ssue the orders under this bill.

1:08: 13 PM

TI MOTHY CLARK, Staff, Representative Bryce Edgnon, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, answered that over the years tribes have
denonstrated strong institutions and capacity, including the

Tanana Chiefs Conference in the Interior, the Central Council
Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of Alaska in the Southeast, and
others in several |ocations around Al aska. He opined that the
Departnent of Law (DOL) has been in close contact with tribal
courts in recent years, and that DOL attorneys nmay add to his
response.

MR. CLARK offered that the bill relates to the renoval of the
"Al aska Exenption" to The Violence Against Wnen Act of 1994
(VAWA), that was repealed in 2014 due a bill sponsored by
Senators Lisa Mirkowski and then Senator Begich. He said it
br ought attention to the state's obligation to enforce
protection orders from other jurisdictions including other
state, territorial, and tribal courts. Under Al aska statute,
| aw enforcenent is only conpelled to enforce a tribal, or other
states, protection order when that order has first been filed
with a clerk of an Al aska court. However, he noted, wth Al aska
now subject to VAWA, the federal |aw supersedes state |law and a
protection order issued by a foreign jurisdiction (other states,
territory, or tribal court) no longer nust be registered in an
Al askan court before enforcenent. He advised that in July 2015,
Attorney General Craig Richards at the behest of Comm ssioner
Gary Fol ger, Departnent of Public Safety, issued an opinion on
this subject discussing the state now being subject to the
federal |aw Wthin that opinion, Attorney GCeneral Richards
recommended in two places that the state reconcile its statutes
with the now prevailing federal |aw obligation. Essentially, he
expl ai ned, HB 221 follows the attorney general's reconmendations
for conpliance that is hoped to clarify the duties of state |aw
enforcenent by renoving these conflicts, and lowering the risk
of potential |awsuits. In addition, he stated, HB 221 adds a
presunption of validity on the part of |aw enforcenent so they
are encouraged to enforce a protective order issued by another
jurisdiction so long as it appears authentic on its face. He

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2016



descri bed that provision as an error on the side of caution and
that presunption of validity does exist in other states
addressing these matters. He continued that Legislative Legal
and Research Services agreed that in no location was it stated
very clearly or all in one place what defines other
jurisdictions. He pointed out that this bill clearly states
that the other jurisdictions include another state, territory,
United States Mlitary Tribunals, and tribal courts.

MR. CLARK, in response to Chair LeDoux, answered that HB 221
does not include foreign judgenents. He related that as
Attorney General Richards enphasized in his opinion, "it gives
of ficers access to tribal and foreign protection orders anywhere
in Al aska, even if the victim does not have a copy of the order
at hand." Therefore, he said, the state continues to encourage
people to file protection orders with a clerk of an Al aska court
who then sends it to a central registry.

1:15:13 PM

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER i n audi ence.

1:16: 22 PM

MR. CLARK, in response to Chair LeDoux, stated that he is
unaware of anyone from the general public planning to testify.
He offered that Representative G uenberg direct his questions to
him as he may be able to provide an answer if the Departnent of
Law (DQL) is unavail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d prefer an attorney.
1:17:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether M. Cdark had received
comments fromany of the tribes or Native organizations.

MR, CLARK answer no.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN questioned whether any comrents had been
received fromindividuals objecting to this change.

MR. CLARK responded no.
1:18: 29 PM

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER i n audi ence.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 29, 2016



1: 20: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the attorney genera
suggests that the legislature anend conflicting statutes to
bring Alaska into conpliance with VAWA, as nost |egislatures
have done. He asked whether there is anything within that
statenment the departnent wants to bring into conpliance wth
VAWA that is not contained in the bill.

MR. CLARK answered that nonths ago he provided this version of
the bill to DOL, who performed a thorough evaluation, and its
response was that it had no problemw th the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked John Skidnore or Mary Lundqui st
whether there is anything the departnent now feels should, or
shoul d not, be included in the bill.

1:21:11 PM

MARY LUNDQUI ST, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Opinions,
Appeals & Ethics Section, Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral,
Department of Law (DCOL), answered that she is unaware of
anything in VAWA that would require other changes to state
statute.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there is anything in the
bill that should not be incl uded.

M5. LUNDQUI ST opined that there is nothing in the bill that
should not be included to bring Alaska into conpliance wth
VAWA.

1: 22: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that M. Lundquist provide a |ist
of tribal courts that could try cases subject to full faith and
credit under this bill.

MS. LUNDQUI ST offered that the list of tribes able to issue
protective orders wunder this bill wuld be all federally
recogni zed tribes in the State of Al aska. She advised that a
new list on the federal register was issued and she could
provide the list to the conmttee, if so desired. She stated
there are 229 tribes in the State of Alaska and whet her each of
those tribes issue protective orders, or not, is another

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -5- January 29, 2016



guestion because there are various degrees of sophistication
anongst the tri bes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Lundquist to send the |ist of
229 tribes to the commttee.

V5. LUNDQUI ST agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether DOL wll receive, as
tribes assune this responsibility, an indication from individual
tribes that they are taking on this responsibility.

M5. LUNDQUI ST opined that DOL will not be separately notified as
the tribes have been issuing protective orders for many years
and the state recogni zes those orders. She said there will not
be any special notification provisions when a tribe decides to
i ssue protective orders, or even if it has issued a protective
order.

1: 24: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether, currently, there is a
nmechanism requiring tribes assuming this responsibility to
notify the State of Alaska so the state is aware in order to
assure this is not a fraud.

M5. LUNDQUI ST replied that, currently, there is no mechani sm by
which a tribe would notify the state that it is exercising its
authority to issue tribal protection orders. She offered that
the tribe would be issuing protective orders under its inherent
jurisdiction.

1: 25: 39 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked Representative G uenberg where he is going
with this Iine of questions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is exploring whether there
should be some nmechanism to require the tribes to notify that
they are undertaking this jurisdiction.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether this includes other tribes outside of
Al aska.

MR CLARK answered "Yes it does."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2016



CHAI R LEDOUX questioned whether, conceivably, there could even
be a mechanism for every tribe in the United States to notify
the State of Alaska that it mght at some point in the future
i ssue protective orders.

MR, CLARK stated that such a requirenent would be counter-
productive to the provision in the Violence Against Wnen Act
(VAWA) that is meant to streamline the ability of tribes and
other jurisdictions to have its protection orders enforced. He
pointed out that HB 221 elimnates the current statute step of
the requirement that protective orders be filed in a state
court. The idea, he enphasized, is that an individual facing
danger from a person against whom they had a protective order
could receive nore i medi ate | aw enforcenment support.

1: 28: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that other state courts have the
Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and Enforcenment Act (UCCIEA)
and federally the Parental Kidnapping Prevention Act (PKPA). He
explained that normally a child nust be in the State of Al aska
for six nonths before the ~court can entertain anything
concerning its jurisdiction, wth an exception being an
energency situation for the protection of the child. He asked
about the interplay between that body of state and federal |aw
and HB 221, because there is a narrow exception permtted of the
above-statutes. He expressed concern regardi ng someone bringing
a child into Alaska and noving into a tribal jurisdiction, and
t her eby evading the normal requirenents of the other state | aw

1: 29: 52 PM

M5. LUNDQUI ST advised that she is not intimately famliar wth
UCCIEA or PKPA She surm sed that Representative G uenberg's
concern was about taking a child into a jurisdiction in which a
tribe could issue a protective order. She advised that the
protective orders issued by tribes in Alaska "would be ... by
the tribe and whether it involved a tribal mnenber that held a
subject matter jurisdiction of the tribe would be determ ned."

CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated to Representative Guenberg that she
does not understand his line of questioning in that all HB 221
does is renove the requirenent that the protective order be
filed [wth a state court], and stressed that she does not see
how his questioning is germane to this particular bill.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 29, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that he wants to be sure that this
cannot be used as an "end run" over the other jurisdictional
requi renents of the |aw

CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated that she does not see how taking out the
word "filing" changes things.

1: 31: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether there is anything in federal
law requiring a tribe to register wwth the federal governnment or
provide notice that it has established a tribal court and the
tribal court is now issuing [protective] orders relating to the
Vi ol ence Agai nst Wnen Act (VAWA).

M5. LUNDQUI ST opined there is nothing in VAWA requiring a tribe
to give prior notice to the federal governnment that it wll
exercise its inherent authority to issue protective orders.
Under VAWA, 18 USC 2265(e) which read as foll ows:

(e) Tribal Court Jurisdiction —

For purposes of this section, a court of an Indian
tribe shall have full civil jurisdiction to issue and
enforce protection orders involving any person,
including the authority to enforce any orders through
civil contenpt proceedings, to exclude violators from
I ndian land, and to use other appropriate nechanisns,
in matters arising anywhere in the Indian country of
the Indian tribe (as defined in section 1151) or
otherwise within the authority of the Indian tribe.

V. LUNDQUI ST  expl ai ned that the law recognizes broad
jurisdiction on behalf of the tribes to issue protective orders
in that tribes have full civil jurisdiction to issue and enforce
protective orders involving any person.

1: 33: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN surm sed that the only requirenment of a
tribe is to be federally recognized, and that there is a neans
by which the federal governnment or U S. Departnent of Interior
recogni zes tribes. He further surmsed that once a tribe is
federally recognized, the tribe has inherent power that it may,
or may not, exercise.

M5. LUNDQUI ST answered that Representative Claman is correct in
that if the tribe is federally recognized it holds inherent

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2016



jurisdiction. She pointed out that the U S. Suprene Court
federal case |aw recognizes tribal jurisdiction over tribal
| ands and tribal nenbers. In the event there was one person who
was a nenber of the tribe that was subject to the protective
order, she opined, the tribe would have inherent jurisdiction
over that.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ CLAMAN  poi nt ed out t hat f eder al triba
recognition doesn't require a tribe to give notice it is issuing
orders to the federal governnent. He questioned whether there
would be a conflict between a state law requiring such notice
and federal |aw that doesn't.

MS. LUNDQUI ST opined that it would be somewhat inconsistent to
require prior notice by the tribe, and noted that it runs
counter to the intent of VAWA to renpbve restraints on issuance
of tribal protection orders, and even foreign orders in having
t hose foreign orders recognized in other states.

1:35:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  CGRUENBERG said that this uses the term
"protective order" |oosely. Under AS 18, Alaska Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault orders are specifically defined and
opi ned that six nmonths can be extended to 12 nonths. He stated
he does not see anything here that is simlarly definitional as
to what a tribal protection order is, and that he could
conceivably see a system where a protective order could be
per manent . He asked what is there that defines what a tribal
order m ght be.

1: 36: 04 PM

JOHN  SKI DMORE, Division Director, Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DCOL), explained the answer
to the question is found wthin VAWA where it defines a
protective order and it contenplates the ©precise notion
Representati ve Gruenberg asked about. He said there could be a
permanent and |ifetine protective order, and with regard to what
the protective order says, the law controlling it 1is the

jurisdiction issuing it. For exanple, he offered, should the
State of Washington have a lifetinme protective order it would be
in existence for that person's lifetine. The way it works in

Al aska, he explained, is that Alaska is the enforcing state and
Al aska | ooks at whether there is a crime on its books for a
violation of that order and the answer is yes. He noted that
Al aska does not care what Washington says about the |ength of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- January 29, 2016



the protective order, Al aska enforces it as Washi ngton says that
it is a valid order. However, Al aska does analyze whether
"that" is a crime in Al aska. He referred back to the question
regarding custody, and advised that Alaska does not have
violations of protective orders based on child custody, which
are the other two federal acts Representative G uenberg referred
t o. He explained that Alaska is only interested in contact,
threats, or whether or not a person has weapons because those
are the violations of protective orders Alaska enforces -
nothing to do with child custody.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that the only portions of the
protective order Alaska enforces are injunctive and not
cust odi al .

MR. SKIDMORE answered yes, under Alaska crimnal |aw the state
enforces the injunctive. He then pointed out that the custodial
is enforced under Alaska |law, but [custodial] is not an enforced
crimnal charge as enforcing a protective order. He said there
are other statutes Al aska |ooks at for child custody, but those
are not the statutes inplicated by the charge of violating a
protective order.

1: 38: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked whether HB 221 will limt it to
crimnal enforcenent or also govern civil enforcenent.

MR. SKI DMORE responded that both types of enforcenent would be
avai | abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said his question is related to civi
enf orcenent .

1: 39: 33 PM

M5. LINDQUI ST replied that she is in the civil division of the
Attorney General's office, and asked to have the question
r epeat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his question, from a civil
custodial point of view in seeking a civil enforcenent of a
domestic violence protective order enforced in a tribal court.
He offered a scenario of the State of Idaho issuing a five year
protective order adjudicating custody of the child that remains
on the books and effective for five years. In that Al aska's
order is normally six to 12 nonths, he asked whether HB 221

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- January 29, 2016



would require the Alaska court, tribal or otherwi se, to extend
that child custody protective order for the period of Idaho's
five years rather than Alaska's six to twelve nonths.

1:41:52 PM

M5. LUNDQUI ST advised she is not famliar with child custody
| aws and does not know the answer to that question.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether Representative Guenberg's question
goes to this bill or sinply to current |aw She stressed that
the discussion in this commttee should only relate to the
changes to the law pronmulgated in this specific bill and not to
general questions with respect to the law of restraining orders,
protective orders, etcetera. She asked Ms. Lundquist or M.
Ski dnore to answer the question.

VB. LUNDQUI ST responded that VAWA has preenpted certain
provisions of state law and HB 221 is designed to bring state
law into conformance with VAWA She agreed with Chair LeDoux
that the questions regarding any interplay between child custody
orders and protective orders are a bit astray. She advised that
if there is a conflict, it currently exists and this bill won't
have any effect on that.

CHAI R LEDQUX, in response to Representative Guenberg' s request
to continue, asked whether his follow up question relates to the
changes in the law fromthis bill.

1: 44: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to page 4, lines 16-17, which
read as foll ows:

(1) issued by a court of the United States,
a court of another state or territory, a United States
mlitary tribune, or a tribal court;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it discusses the petition filed in
di vorce or dissolution statutes under AS 25.24.200, which is not
particularly dealing with state custody under Title 47, or
crimnal law under Title 11. He said, "It changes that the
di ssolution statute nust consider a protective order filed in
another jurisdiction and recognized in this state.” He
explained that it has to be recognized and that it draws in
these jurisdictional issues, and it is the same in Sec. 9. He
further explained that with his line of questioning he would

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2016



like to ascertain the effect this has in the adjudication of
di ssol ution cases. It very definitely is civil and these are
private custody disputes, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that the 7/30/15 letter from
Attorney General Craig Richards to Comm ssioner Gary Folger is
at the heart of what the commttee is discussing. He then asked
about the "Alaska Exenption" and whether it was from federal
I aw.

1:47:10 PM

MR. CLARK advised that the Alaska Exenption is an exenption from
Chapter 2265 of the Violence Against Wnen Act (VAW). He
explained that it renobves the requirenent that a protection
order from another jurisdiction is no longer required to be
filed in Al aska state court in order to be enforced.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that the exenption existed and
then it was done away with the exenption to require it to be
filed.

1:48: 00 PM

MR. CLARK explained that it is just the opposite. He said that
by doing away with the Al aska Exenption from Chapter 2265 of the
Vi ol ence Agai nst Wwnen Act, Al aska can no longer require that a
protection order from another jurisdiction is filed wth a state
court clerk before state |aw enforcenent is conpelled to enforce
that protection order.

1: 48: 35 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX commented that this line of questioning is totally
beyond t he di scussion of this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to M. Cark's comment that it
only applies to other states and not to foreign custody orders,
such as Canada. He asked where it is so |limting that the
orders this relates to are only donestic foreign orders.

MR. CLARK advised that Attorney Ceneral R chards and he have
been using "foreign jurisdictions" as a term of art, and not
being an attorney he may be in error.

CHAI R LEDOUX expressed that his question seens to apply to the
entirety of the statute, and HB 221 is sinply elimnating the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- January 29, 2016



phrase "filed." She stressed that the statute currently exists
and further stressed that he limt his questions to the changes
made by elimnating the requirenment for the filing of the
protective order.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he wunderstands, and
asked where it says this only applies to protective orders from
another state or territory of the United States, and wouldn't
apply to a foreign order from Morocco.

1:50: 47 PM

MR. SKI DMORE pointed out that the |language is |ocated in Section
2 of HB 221, page 2, lines 2-4, which read:

(c) In this section, "protective order"
nmeans an order issued, [OR] filed, or recogni zed under
AS 13.26.207 - 13.26.209, AS 18.65.850 - 18.65.870, or
AS 18.66.100 - 18.66. 180.

MR. SKIDMORE advised that the Alaska Statutes discuss only
protective orders filed within the United States and not from a
foreign county.

CHAI R LEDOUX opened public testinony and after ascertaining no
one wished to testify, closed public testinony.

1: 52: 09 PM
The conmmittee took a brief at ease.
1: 53: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to AS 13.26.207 - 13.26.209
and comrented that he did not see anything that "limts it |ike
that" and wanted it on the record. He commented that he has no
reason to dispute M. Skidnore, but he could not find it at this
poi nt .

CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated that HB 221 is only changing the
requirenent of filing. She opined that Representative G uenberg
was interested in a discussion regarding the whole idea of who
honors protective orders, from which jurisdictions, and when,
whi ch does not relate to the subject of this particular bill.

CHAI R LEDOUX advi sed that HB 221 would be held in commttee.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- January 29, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted his question is that the intent
of the bill

CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated that the bill is held in commttee.
1: 54: 53 PM
ADJ OURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 1:54 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- January 29, 2016



